FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
6/8/2020 2:34 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

No: 983755

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

ANNE BLOCK,

Petitioner,

v.

SNOHOMISH COUNTY, at el.

Respondent.

NOTICE OF DISQUALIFICATION AND PETITION FOR REVIEW

Anne K. Block, *Pro Se*313 Shelby St
Gold Bar, WA 98251
Tele: 206-326-9933
Emailing address for Supreme Court is:
Lifeisgood357@comcast.net

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Comes now Anne Block and respectfully moves for a Motion to
Disqualify and Granting Petition for Review of Court of Appeals Division
One's March 5, 2020, Order Dismissing Appeal after payment was issued.

II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISIONS

Court of Appeals Division One, Order Dismissing Appeal *after* Block issued 'wo appeal payments, of \$290.00 each, in Block v Duvall Court of Appeals Division One Case No. 80340-9-I. (appended as Exhibit I) issued March 5, 2020.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Whether the Court of Appeals Division One must Docket an appeal after payment was made?
- 2. Whether a court commissioner and/or a clerk have discretion not to process an Appellant's payment on an appeal?
- 3. Whether or not Washington State Supreme Court should hear any cases involving Block, since Block sued the Washington State Bar Association for racketeering and the Washington State Supreme Court?
- 4. Whether or not Washington State Supreme Court Justice Barbara Madsen should be disqualified from participating in this Petition since Block sued for Barbara Madsen for racketeering, and violations of her civil rights pursuant to USC 42. 1983?
- 5. Whether or not Washington State Supreme Court Judges should be

disqualified as members of Association of Washington Cities, who is, according to Gold Bar's Mayor William Clem, paying Defendants legal bill in this case?

- 6. Whether or not Supreme Court Justice Barbara Madsen should participate in this Petition since Defendants counsel, a Special Assistant Attorney General, a Special Assistant Prosecutor, and an Association of Washington Cities contractor, known as Keating, Buckling, and McCormack Inc., Pacifica Law Group, Madrona Law Group PLLC, and Kenyon Disend, were writing Justice Barbara Madsen and the Supreme Court's Clerk Ron Carpenter's responsive brief in Block v WSBA et al and being paid by the Washington State Attorney General's Office with the assistance of the Defendants counsel in this appeal.
- 7. Whether or not Appearance of Fairness Doctrine s violated by allowing the current Washington State Supreme Court decide this Petition while at the same time Block is suing Justice Madsen and Clerk Ron Carpenter, and the Washington Supreme Court's Bar Association otherwise known as the Washington State Bar Association?

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case reflects corruption at the highest level in our Courts, including, but not limited to, King County Superior Court Judges Beth Andrus (now on Court of Appeals Division One) and Michael Scott, the Washington State Court of Appeals, and the Washington State Supreme Court Justice Barbara Madsen.

Block brought a complaint for access to public records against Snohomish County, City of Duvall, and City of Gold Bar, separately, paying \$240.00 per case in King County Superior Court only after being notified by a Gold Bar employee that the Washington State Bar Association, an alleged

private association managed jointly by the Washington State Attorney General's Office and the Washington State Supreme Court, stole and disseminated Block's Washington State Bar application files to the City of Gold Bar's law firm, Weed, Gaafstra and Benson.

The Washington State Superior Court, and Court of Appeals Division One Judge, Judge Beth Andrus Sua Sponte consolidated three public records cases against three separate agencies into one case, Block v Snohomish County et al, KCSC Case No: 17-2-00682-3.

At the time of the above appeals, Block did not know that King

County Superior Court Judge Michael Scott was a Washington State Special
assistant Attorney General, a Special Assistant Prosecutor s for many counties
including Defendant Snohomish County, a member and contractor for
Association of Washington Cities, a member of the WSBA Rules Committee,
and was represented by Defendant's counsel, Keating Buckling and
McCormack Inc, and Kenyon Disend while employed with the City of
Bainbridge Island. Judge Michael Scott never disclosed his pecuniary interest
with the Defendants counsel.

Block appealed several exparte orders issued by King County Superior Court Judge Michael Scott, dated June 2018, July 2018, August 2018, September 2018, and October 2018, and June 2019, July 2019, and September 2019. Since the first appeal in 2018 was all the same case and controversy, Block filed a Notice of Amended Appeal and Defendants did not

file an objection.

In January 2020 to Block's surprise, Washington Court of Appeals Division One Commissioner Richard Johnson issued an Order to pay a second appeal payment of \$290.00, and if not paid, Block's appeal would be dismissed (Appendix II).

In late January 2020, Block appeared in person with Lori Shavlik at Washington Court of Appeals Division One located at One Union Place in Seattle to make a second payment of \$290.00 in this appeal. The Washington Court of Appeals Division One's Court clerk Jaqueline Harvey refused to accept payment and ordered Block to issue payment through the King County E file portal. On February 11, 2020, Block issued a second appeal payment of \$290.00 through the King County E file system. Block made the second payment and further filed a Declaration with the Court Of Appeals (Appendix II) stating this fact. This should have made the Commissioner's January 2020 Order "moot" but instead the Court of Appeals Division refused to process Block's appeal payment and dismissed her appeal.

Washington State's Const. as well as the 14th Amendment mandates due process of law. This includes Block's right to have impartial judicial officers hearing and deciding cases. As such, Block requests an unbiased Supreme Court examine the following issues: (1) whether or not a Clerk has discretion not process an Appellant's payment for appeal; (2) whether Appellant's fundamental due process rights have been violated when the

Washington Court of Appeals Division One refused to process Appellant's appeal rayment; (3) Whether or not a Supreme Court Justice must disqualify themselves under the Appearance of Fairness Doctrine because Petitioner has sued the Washington State Supreme Court and the Washington State Bar Association; (4) Whether or not Defendants counsel, who is also paid to defend the Washington State Bar Association in Block v WSBA et al, a branch of the Washington State Supreme Court, therefore, the entire Washington State Supreme Court should be disqualified for hearing and deciding this Petition?

IV. LEGAL ARGUMENT WHY MUST BE GRANTED

This case involves three basic due process issues.

First, does a court clerk have discretion not to process and docket Appellant's appeal after payment is made.

Secondly, and perhaps the most important issue is whether the entire Supreme Court is disqualified under the appearance of fairness doctrine since Block sued the Washington State Supreme Court's Bar Association (WSBA) in Block v WSBA et al and Block v WSBA et al (2)?

Finally, since Defendants Counse, Kenyon Disend (Michael Kenyon even bragged on his website that the WSBA is one of his clients. In addition.

Keating, Buckling, and McCormack Inc, and Pacifica Law Group, are Special Assistant Attorney Generals, contractors and members of Association of Washington Cities, and Special Assistant Prosecutors, are being paid to write

and legally defend Washington Supreme Court Justice Barbara's Madsen and the Washington State Supreme Court's Bar Association, in Block v WSBA et al (2015, 2018, the 14th Amendment's Due Process is being violated by not having impartial judicial officers participating in this Petition.

This case violates due process under the state and federal constitution because "[a] fair trial in a fair tribunal is a basic requirement of due process." In re Murchison, 349U.S. 133, 136, 75 S Ct. 623, 99 L. Ed. 942 (1955); accord State ex rel. McFerran v. Justice Court of Evangelical Starr, 32 Wn. 2d 544, 549-50, 202 P.2d 927 (1949). Due process requires the absence of an unconstitutional "risk of bias." Rippo v. Baker, 137 S. Ct. 905, 907, 197 L. Ed. 2d 167 (2017). The United States Supreme Court has explained that the federal Due Process Clause has been implemented by objective standards that do not require proof of actual bias, just as the rich such as bias. Williams v. Pennsylvania, 136 S. Ct. 1899, 1905, 195 L. Ed. 2d 132 (2016). The inquiry requires that "[t]he Court asks not whether a judge harbors an actual, subject bias, but instead whether, as an objective matter, the average judge in his position is likely to be neutral, or whether there is an unconstitutional potential for bias." Id. (internal citations omitted) (emphasis omitted). The Supreme Court has made clear that due process may be violated even if a judge is not actually biases. Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Lavole, 475 U.S. 813, 825 106 S. Ct. 1580, 89 L. Ed. 2d 823 (1986).

"Due process, the appearance of fairness, and Canon 3(D)(1) of the Code of the Judicial Conduct required disqualification of a judge who is biased against a party or whose impartiality may be reasonably questioned." Smith v. Behr Process Corp., 113 Wn. App. 306, 340, 54 P.3d 665 (2002) (citing) Wolfkill Feed & Fertilizer *Corp. v. Martin*, 103 Wn. App. 836, 840, 14 P. 3d 877 (2000)). The doctrine covers actual and potential bias. See State v. Madry, 8 Wn. App. 61, 70, 504 P.2d. 1156 (1972) ("The law goes farther than required an impartial judge; it also requires that the judge appear to be impartial."). "Under the appearance of fairness doctrine, a judicial proceeding is valid only if a reasonably prudent and disinterred observer would conclude that all parties obtained a fair, impartial, and neutral hearing." State v. Ladenburg, 67 Wn. App. 749, 754-55, 840 P.2d 228 (1992).

The Washington Court of Appeals Division One provided clear instruction on recusal as in *Valerie Ann Gonzales v. State of Washington*Dept. of Children, Youth, and Families, 172 Wn. 2d (March 23, 2020). "The appearance of fairness doctrine provides greater protection. It permits litigants to make fair trial claims based on violations of the Code of Judicial

Conduct . . . regardless of whether those claims implicate due process." State v. Blizzard, 195Wn. App. 717,725,381 P.3d 1241 (2016).

Last month, Block received email communication from the Washington State Attorney General Leslie Seffern documenting that the AG's Office did not write any of the responsive briefs in Block v WSBA et al., Defendants counsel did. This means, Justice Barbara Madsen, the WSBA, are being represented by the same firms representing the Defendants in this case as well as the King County Superior Court Judge Michael Scott who issued the exparte orders subject to this appeal.

In addition, public records received by the Washington State Attorney General's Office, documents that Kenyon Disend, Keating, Buckling, and McCormack Inc, Pacifica Law Group and King County Superior Court Judge Michael Scott (who issued exparte orders on appeal in this matter) are working for the State of Washington Attorney General's Office, being paid with taxpayer monies, and the Washington State Supreme Court has entered into a contract with the Washington State Attorney General's Office. Besides the violation of the Separation of Powers Doctrine having our Judiciary enter into agreements with the Executive Branch, this means the same attorney general's office that is representing parties in this Appeal/Petition are also representing the Washington State Supreme Court's Bar Association and Justice Madsen and Supreme Court Clerk Ron Carpenter in Block v WSBA et al and King County judge Michael Scott who issued exparte orders in this

case. Therefore, the entire Washington State Supreme Court's impartiality, and appearance of fairness is therefore reasonably established.

VI. CONCLUSION

This petition involves violations of due process of Petitioner on several fronts. First, refusing to process the appellant's payment is not discretionary and should be determined by an unbiased Supreme Court. The decision of the Appeals Court is in conflict with the 14th Amendment and previous US Supreme Court Decisions citied herein.

The Court should accept review, grant Petitioner's Motion to
Disqualify the Washington State Supreme Court for reasons stated herein,
seek a temporary appointment with no prior relationships with the
Washington State Attorney General's Office, the Washington State Supreme
Court, Washington Association of Cities (who is in jointly paying the legal
with the Attorney General in this case), and reverse the decision of the Court
of Appeals case No. 80340-9-1 and issue an ORDER to process Petitioner's
appeal payment and set a schedule for appeal.

Based on the foregoing arguments, Block respectfully request the Supreme Court disqualify themselves, assign unbiased Justices, and accept review of this case because it meets the criteria for review set forth in RAP 13.4.