FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
7/10/2020 12:15 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

No. 98375-5

THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

ANNE BLOCK,

Petitioner

VS.

CITY OF DUVALL and CITY OF GOLD BAR

Respondents.

RESPONDENTS CITY OF DUVALL AND CITY OF GOLD BAR'S RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW, ET AL.

Shannon M. Ragonesi, WSBA #31951 Amanda G. Butler, WSBA #40473 Keating, Bucklin, & McCormack, Inc., P.S. 801 Second Avenue, Suite 1210 Seattle, WA 98104-1576

Phone: (206) 623-8861

Email: sragonesi@kbmlawyers.com
Email: abutler@kbmlawyers.com

Attorneys for Respondents City of Duvall

and City of Gold Bar

I. INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to this Court's letter dated June 10, 2020, Respondents City of Duvall and City of Gold Bar ("Respondents") hereby submit this combined opposition to Petitioner's (1) request for an extension of time, (2) disqualification of the Washington State Supreme Court and (3) petition for review.

II. RELEVANT PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Petitioner originally had two matters before the Court of Appeals involving public records requests to the Cities of Duvall and Gold Bar. See Court of Appeals Case Nos. 80340-9-I and 78446-3-I. The matters were never consolidated.¹ The instant case pertains to Case No. 80340-9-I.

On October 11, 2019, the Court stated in part: "Moving forward, the cases will be treated separately..." *Appendix A*. Given the cases were not consolidated, each appeal required its own filing fee. The court ordered Petitioner to pay the filing fee by October 25, 2019. *Appendix A*. She did not.

On December 18, 2019, the Court issued an Order Denying Pending Motions to Modify and Related Motions stating in part: "it is further

-

¹ Case No. 78446-3-I has been dismissed.

ORDERED that if the filing fee in No. 80340-9 is not paid within ten days of the date of this order, the appeal will be dismissed." *Appendix B*.

Petitioner failed to comply with this Order. Thus, on January 9, 2020, the Court issued a letter stating: "The filing fee has not been paid as required be recent order. Review is dismissed." *Appendix C*.

On January 21, 2020, Petitioner filed a Motion to Modify Commissioner/Clerk's January 9, 2020 Order. On March 5, 2020, the Court denied the Motion to Modify. *Appendix D*.

In sum, Petitioner failed to pay the filing fee by the deadline set forth in the Court's December 18, 2019 order (and in the October 11, 2019 order).

Based upon the docket and materials submitted by Petitioner, it appears Ms. Block paid the filing fee on February 11, 2020. This only confirms Petitioner failed to comply with the Court's orders to pay the fee by the October and December 2019 deadlines.

Petitioner now petitions for review of the March 5, 2020 order.

III. THE REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME SHOULD BE DENIED

On April 3, 2020, Petitioner filed "Appellants Notice of Appeal on Case 80340-9-I Notifying Supreme Court that Appeal was Paid in full and WA Court of Appeals Div. One Refuses to Dkt Payment was Made."

On April 8, 2020, the Court sent a letter to Petitioner stating in part as follows:

The Rules of Appellate Procedure (RAP) do not provide for such a notice procedure to be used to seek review of a Court of Appeals opinion. The proper method by which to request review is by the service and filing of a petition for review, see RAP 13.4. The contents and style of a petition for review should conform to the requirements of RAP 13.4(c). It is noted that RAP 13.4(f) provides that the petition for review "should not exceed 20 pages double spaced, excluding appendices." I have enclosed for the Petitioner a copy of RAP 13.4 and Forms 9, 5, and 6, and part F of Form 3 from the appendix to the Rules of Appellate Procedure. These provide the Petitioner with the basic required contents and the suggested form for a petition review.

Because the notice was timely filed in this Court, the Petitioner is granted permission to serve and file with this Court a petition for review, provided it is served and filed by May 7, 2020. At such time, if any, as Petitioner serves and files a petition for review, a date will be established for the filing of any answer to the petition. *Failure to file a proper petition for review with this Court by May 7, 2020, will most likely result in dismissal of this matter.*

(emphasis added). Appendix E.

On May 8, 2020, one day *after* the Petition was due, Petitioner submitted a request for an extension of time to file her petition for review. She stated she is a "person directly affected by the corona-virus pandemic."

RAP 18.8(b) states:

(b) Restriction on Extension of Time. The appellate court will only in extraordinary circumstances and to prevent a gross miscarriage of justice extend the time within which a party must file aa petition for review. The appellate court will ordinarily hold that the desirability of finality of decisions outweighs the privilege of a litigant to obtain an extension of time under this section

As a threshold matter, Petitioner filed her request for extension of time *after* the deadline for the petition had passed. Petitioner does not appear concerned with the orders and rules of this Court. The Court provided her with clear and concise instructions when she initially filed her improper Notice. Petitioner did not comply with the order.

While Respondents concede the COVID-19 pandemic itself is an extraordinary circumstance, Petitioner has failed to demonstrate how/why it would prevent her from timely filing her petition, particularly when she was able to prepare and file the initial (improper) notice and motion for extension of time during this same pandemic. *Appendix F (Docket)*.

The request for additional time and the petition itself were both untimely. The petition should not be considered.

IV. THE MOTION TO DISQUALIFY SHOULD BE DENIED

Petitioner argues the entire Supreme Court should be disqualified for various indecipherable reasons. Petitioner's briefing is rife with assertions and statements lacking any basis in fact, as evidenced by the lack of citation. As an example, the Court can take judicial notice that the undersigned does not represent the Washington State Bar Association and/or any of the Supreme Court Justices in any cases filed by Petitioner (or any others).

A party seeking recusal of a judge (or here an entire panel) must produce sufficient evidence demonstrating actual or potential bias, such as personal or pecuniary interest on the part of the judge; mere speculation is not enough. *Kokv. Tacoma School Dist. No. 10*, 179 Wn. App. 10, 317 P.3d 481 (2013). Due process, the appearance of fairness, and the Code of Judicial Conduct require disqualification of a judge who is biased against a party or whose impartiality may be reasonably questioned. *Wolfkill Feed and Fertilizer Corp. v. Martin*, 103 Wn. App. 836, 14 P.3d 877 (2000).

Petitioner has failed to identify any tangible evidence of actual or potential bias. Her misrepresentations, unsupported assertions and rank speculation on the issue are insufficient to trigger recusal. The request should be denied.

V. THE PETITION FOR REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

Petitioner argues the court clerk does not have discretion "not to process and docket Appellant's appeal after payment is made." The procedural history in this case clearly demonstrates that is not what occurred here.

The Court ordered Petitioner to pay the filing fee in October 2019 and again in December—no later than 10 days after the December 18, 2019 order. She did not. She very clearly has violated multiple court orders.

She now provides that she paid the filing fee in February 2020. Again, that does not change the fact she failed to comply with the December 2019 order (and the October 2019 order).

Rules govern the acceptance of review in this Court. RAP 13.4(b) states:

(b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review. A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Petitioner has failed to provide any analysis as to how/why this criteria is met. Instead, Petitioner summarily states on page 9 that her case "meets criteria for review set forth in 13.4." It does not.

Again, it is undisputed Petitioner failed to comply with the Court's December 18, 2019 order (and the October 2019 order) and dismissal resulted. First, the decision rendered by the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court. Second, the decision is not in conflict with a decision of the Court of Appeals. Petitioner has failed to identify a single case holding that a court may not dismiss a case when a Petitioner violates multiple court orders pertaining to a filing fee. Third, Petitioner's failure to comply with a court order does not involve a

significant question of law under the federal or state Constitution. And finally, this is not an issue of substantial public interest.

While Petitioner feels strongly about her personal payment issue in the Court of Appeals, that alone does not warrant review. The issue Petitioner raises is unique to her and does not involve a broader issue of public interest let alone a significant one.

The criteria for review are not met. The petition should be denied.

VI. CONCLUSION

Petitioner's requests for extension of time, disqualification and petition for review should be denied.